
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA
November 28, 2018

8:00 am. — Regular Session

1. CALLTO ORDER

2. PUBLIC COMMENT OPPORTUNITY
At this time, members of the public may address the Commission. Please state your name
prior to making comments.

3. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

4. CONSENT AGENDA

5. SPECIFIC ITEMS OF BUSINESS:
A. Adoption of Fiscal Year 2019 Budget
B. Presentation of Proposed 2019 District Initiatives
C. Summary of Existing District Projects
D. Summary of 2018 Budget Status

6. OTHER BUSINESS

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

8. PUBLIC COMMENT OPPORTUNITY

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION
Executive Session Per RCW 42.30.140 (4)(a): Considering issues related to collective
bargaining with a labor union — 10 minutes

10. ADJOURNMENT

LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
1220 Lakeway Drive

Bellingham, WA 98229

001



AGENDA
BILL

Item 4
Consent Agenda

DATE SUBMITTED: November 21, 2018 MEETING DATE: November 28, 2018

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM: Rachael Hope

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL

DISTRICT ENGINEER/ASST MGR APPROVAL

FINANCE MANAGER APPROVAL

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 1. See below

2.

3.

RESOLUTION FORMAL ACTION! INFORMATIONAL

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED MOTION /OTHER

E

**TO BE UPDATED 11.27.18**

BACKGROUND I EXPLANATION OF IMPACT

• Meeting Notes from the 11/14/2018 Board Meeting

• Payroll for Pay Period #24 (11/03/2018 through 11/16/2018) totaling $42,590.03.
• Payroll Benefits for Pay Period #24 totaling $47,246.93.

• Accounts Payable Vouchers total to be updated 11/27/18.

002



LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT

REGULAR SESSION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Minutes

November 14, 2018

Board President Laura Weide called the Regular Session to order at 6:30 p.m.

Commissioner Laura Weide
Commissioner John Carter
Commissioner Todd Citron
Commissioner Bruce Ford
Commissioner Leslie McRoberts
General Manager Justin Clary
Assistant General Manager/District Engineer Bill Hunter
Finance Manager/Treasurer Debi Denton
Operations & Maintenance Manager Brent Winters
Recording Secretary Rachael Hope
District Legal Counsel Bob Carmichael
Consulting Engineer Melanie Mankamyer

A list of interested participants is attached.

Consent Agenda

Action Taken
Ford moved, Citron seconded, approval of:

• Meeting Notes from the 10/31/2018 Board Meeting

• Payroll for Pay Period #23 (10/20/2018 through 11/02/2018) totaling $41,302.53.
• Payroll Benefits for Pay Period #23 totaling $46,286.57.

• Accounts Payable Vouchers totaling $115,606.33.
Motion passed.

Septic System Conversion Project Closeout
Hunter explained that the Septic System Conversion Project connected 3 properties that were on septic
systems to public sewer. Those properties were: 975 Geneva Street, 1213 Lakeview Street, and 4354
Lakehill Lane. Two of the owners qualify as low-income persons and the District will be reimbursed when
the properties are sold, transferred, or change ownership. The third owner will reimburse the District by
making 15 equal annual payments, the first of which is due July 1, 2019. The contractor, Len Honcoop
Gravel, has completed all work for the original contract amount of $71,708.32 including 8.5% sales tax,
therefore, staff recommends the Board accept the project as complete.

1220 Lakeway Drive

Bellingham, WA 98229

Attendees:

003
Meeting Minutes November 14, 2018 Page Ii



Action Taken
Ford moved, McRoberts seconded, to accept the Septic System Conversions Project as complete
and authorize staff to close out the public works project. Motion passed.

Draft 2019 Budget Presentation & Discussion
Denton presented the Board with an updated draft of the 2019 budget for review, which included revisions
requested by the Board during its regularly scheduled meeting held on October 31. The Board is expected to
be presented with a final draft for consideration of approval at the next meeting on November 28.
Discussion followed.

District 50 Year Anniversary Update
Clary updated the Board on preparations for the District’s upcoming

50th
anniversary milestone. Graphic

design is in process in collaboration with Sole Graphics, the District’s web designer. Staff is also in the initial
planning of the District’s annual Recognition and State of the District Banquet to be held in January, which
will include recognition of the 50-year anniversary.

General Manager’s Report
Clary introduced the Board to Brent Winters, the District’s new Operations & Maintenance Manager.
Winters gave a short introduction.

Clary recognized District Construction Engineer Kristin Hemenway for her Project Management during the
Par Sewer Pump Station Project. Hemenway showed dedication & excellent work ethic in doing whatever it
takes to serve the community.

Other Business

Commissioner Ford gave a short report on the Lake Whatcom Data group meeting which he attended along
with Clary. Discussion followed.

Executive Session Per RCW 42.30.140 (4)(a): Collective Bargaining - 10 Minutes
Weide recessed the Regular Session to Executive Session at 7:20 p.m. It was estimated that the Executive
Session would take about 10 minutes. The purpose of the Executive Session was for considering issues
related to collective bargaining with a labor union. Weide recessed the Executive Session and reconvened
the Regular Session at 7:30 p.m.

With no further business, Weide adjourned the Regular Session at 7:35 p.m.

Recording Secretary, Rachael Hope Date Minutes Approved

Laura Weide Todd Citron

Bruce R. Ford Leslie McRoberts

John Carter

Meeting Minutes November 14, 2018 P a g e 2 o 4



1259003 Payroll:

I do hereby certify, under penalty of perjury, that the above is an unpaid, just, and due obligation as described herein,
and that I am aithorized to certify this claim.

42.590 .03

Sign —
-,

Date

Board Authorization - As the duly elected board for this district we have reviewed the claims listed and approve the
payment with our signatures below.

Commisioner Commisioner

Commisioner Corn m isioner

Lake Whatcom W-S District
MCAG #: 2330

Trans Date Type

CHECK REGISTER

11/23/2018 To: 11/23/2018

Acct # Chk # Claimant

PAYROLL
Time: 10:05:32 Date: 11/20/2018

Page: 1

Amount Memo

3693 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 3795.30 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 24
3694 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 2,940.40 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 24
3695 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 2.80260 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 24
3696 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 2272.80 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 24
3697 I 1/23/20 18 Payroll 5 EFT 3.28617 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 24
3698 1 1/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 2.20207 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 24
3700 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 1,225.78 11/03/2018 - 11/16/20! 8 PR 24
3701 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 2.54381 11/03/2018- ll/l6/2018PR24
3702 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 1.665. 14 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 24
3703 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 3.33804 11/03/2018- 11/16/2018 PR 24
3704 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 1.857. 10 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 21
3705 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 1 .888.66 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 24
3706 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 1.83908 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 24
3707 1 1/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 2.40350 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 24
3708 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 1493.89 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 21
3709 I 1/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 1,856.44 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 24
3710 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 1396.24 11/03/2018- ll/16/2018PR24
3711 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT 2.38378 11/03/2018- 11/16/2018 PR 24
3699 I 1/23/2018 Payroll 5 8488 1 .399.23 11/03/2018 - 11/16/2018 PR 24

401 Operating Fund 42,590.03

Commisioner

005



CHECK REGISTER BENEFITS
Lake WhatcomW-S District Time: 10:15:35 Date: 11/20/2018
MCAG#: 2330 11/23/2018 To: 11/23/2018 Page:

Trans Date Type Acct # Chk # Claimant Amount Memo

3712 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT DEPARTMENT OF 3,012.00 Pay Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 11/23/2018 - DCP

3713 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT UNITED STATES TREASURY 15,295.61 941 Deposit for Pas Cycle(s)
11/23/2018 - 11/23/2018

3714 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT WA ST PUBLIC EMP RET 9,948.46 Pay Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
PLAN 2 11/23/2018 - PERS 2

3715 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 EFT WA ST PUBLIC EMP RET 2,927.65 Pay Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
PLAN 3 11/23/2018 - PERS 3

3716 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 8489 AFLAC 354.85 Pay Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
11/23/2018 -AFLAC Pre-Tax:
Pay Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
11/23/2018 - AFLAC Post-Tax

3717 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 8490 AFSCME LOCAL 372.21 Pay Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
I l’2320l8 - Union Dues: Pa
Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
11/23/2018 - Union Fund

3718 I 1/23/2018 Payroll 5 8191 HRA VEBA TRUST (PAYEE) 515.00 Pay Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
11/23/2018 - VERA

3719 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 8492 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER 100.00 Pay Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
AGENTS -306798 11/23/2018 - 1CMA

3720 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 8493 WA ST SUPPORT 208.34 Pay Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
ENFORCEMENT REGISTERY 11/23/2018 - SUP ENF

3721 11/23/2018 Payroll 5 8494 WASHINGTON STATE 14,512.81 Pay Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY 11/23/2018 - PEBB Medical: Pa

Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
I 1/23/2018 - PEBI3 ADD LID:
Pay Cycle(s) 11/23/2018 To
11/23/2018 - PEBB Sp Charge

401 Operating Fund 47,246.93

47,246.93 Payroll: 47,246.93

oo



CHECK REGISTER BENEFITS
Lake Whatcorn W-S District Time: 10:15:35 Date: 11/20/2018
MCAG #: 2330 11/23/2018 To: 11/23/2018 Page: 2

Trans Date Type Aect # Chk # Claimant Amount Memo

I do hereby certify, under penalty of perjury, that the above is an unpaid, just, and due obligation as described herein,
and that I am aithorized to certify this claim.

Sign Date I tJZcZ

Board Authorization - As the duly elected board for this district we have reviewed the claims listed and approve the
payment with our signatures below.

Commisioner Commisioner

Commisioner Commisioner

Commisioner

007



AGENDA
BILL Adoption of

Item 5.A Fiscal Year 2019 Budget

DATE SUBMITTED: November 20, 2018 MEETING DATE: November 28, 2018

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM: Justin Clary, General Manager

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL

DISTRICT ENGINEER/ASST MGR APPROVAL ()

FINANCE MANAGER APPROVAL

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 1. Fiscal Year 2019 Budget

2.

3.

RESOLUTION FORMAL ACTION! INFORMATIONAL

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED MOTION /OTHER
D

BACKGROUND I EXPLANATION OF IMPACT
Through the powers granted under Revised Code of Washington Title 57 (Water-Sewer
Districts) and codified under the District’s Administrative Code Title 2, Chapter 2.2 (1):

The General Manager shall develop an operating and capital improvement budget
annually for both the water and sewer systems. The annual budget shall provide for
the forecasting of revenues and expenditures for the following year. The budget shall
be presented to the Board of Commissioners for review and approval prior to the end
of December in advance of the budget year.

Using projected revenues based upon prior Board-adopted rate increases (4% and 2.5%
water and sewer rates, respectively), actual 2018 operating expenses, and projects defined
in the District’s water and sewer capital improvement plans, District staff have developed
the draft budget for Board consideration. Earlier revisions of the budget were presented
during regularly scheduled meetings of the Board held on October31 and November 14,
2018. Comments provided by the Board during those meetings have been incorporated
into the attached Fiscal Year 2019 Budget.



FISCAL IMPACT
The 2019 budget proposes an operating budget of $4,788,040, a capital budget of
$2,555,200, and a debt service budget of $867,100, for a total budget of approximately
$8.2 million.

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION
Staff recommends adoption of the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget.

PROPOSED MOTION
A recommended motion is “I move to approve the Fiscal Year 2019 Budget, as presented.”

009



2019 ANNUAL BUDGET

LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT

LAKE WHAICOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT
1220 LAKE WAY DRIVE

BELLINGHAM, WASHINGTON 98229



THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENT/ALLY LEFT BLANK

011



2019 ANNUAL BUDGET

LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT
1220 LAKE WAY DRIVE

BELLINGHAM, WASHINGTON 98229

APPROVED 2018

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Laura Weide, President, Position 1

Todd Citron, Secretary, Position 2

Bruce Ford, Commissioner, Position 3

Leslie McRoberts, Commissioner, Position 4

John Carter, Commissioner, Position 5

2019 BUDGET
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT

General Manager
Justin Clary

PAGE I

012



CONTENTS
1 GENERAL MANAGER’S MESSAGE 1

2 SUMMARY OF FUNDS 3
2.1 OPERATING FUND (FUND 401) 3
2.2 SYSTEM REINVESTMENT FUND (FUND 420) 3
2.3 SEWER/STORMWATER CONTINGENCY FUND (FUND 425) 3
2,4 WATER CONTINGENCY FUND (FUND 426) 3
2.5 DEBT SERVICE FUND (FUND 450) 4
2.6 BOND RESERVE FUND (FUND 460) 4

3 2019 REVENUE PROJECTIONS 5

4 2019 EXPENDITURES 6
4,1 OPERATING FUND (FUND 401) 6
4.2 SYSTEM REINVESTMENT FUND (FUND 420) 8
4.3 SEWER/STORMWATER CONTINGENCY FUND (FUND 425) 9
4.4 WATER CONTINGENCY FUND (FUND 426) 9
4.5 DEBT SERVICE FUND (FUND 450) 9
4.6 BOND RESERVE FUND (FUND 460) 9

APPENDIX A
2019 BUDGET

APPENDIX B
2019 CAPITAL AND IMPROVEMENT MAINTENANCE PLAN

APPENDIX C
2019 REVENUE BOND AND LOANS FUND SUMMARY

2019 BUDGET PAGE II
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT

013



1 GENERAL MANAGER’S MESSAGE

The 2019 Budget represents the proposed fiscal plans for the Lake Whatcorn Water & Sewer
District for the 2019 calendar year (please refer to Appendix A for a comprehensive presentation of
the 2019 Budget). This budget is the culmination of a collaborative effort between the Board of
Commissioners and staff, and aligns with the District’s mission to pivi’ide the best possible water and sewer
sen’ices to District ci,stomerc at an a!7trdab/e cost, and in a wa) that contributes to protectin<g Lake lVhatcorn water
quialzy. This budget was developed around touchstones of the District’s financial policies, which
embody the principles that guide District budgeting and long-term financial management,
remforcing the key values of fiscal prudence, pay-as-you-go funding to the extent practicable, and
strong stewardship through asset management.

Through adherence to its conservative fiscal policies and the prior adopted multi-year rate schedule,
the District enters 2019 with stable revenue projections that enable continued maintenance of fully
funded operational and capital contingency reserves. Though 2018 has witnessed the highest
number of new home starts (27) within recent memory, and informal communications with
development partners indicate that 2019 may result in similar quantities, development-related
revenue projections have been cautiously budgeted at just over half of 2018’s totals. As a result, the
2019 Budget anticipates this growth, yet also maintains a conservative approach in accounting for
these revenues.

The budget includes approximately $8.2 million in expenditures, which is comprised of an
operations budget of approximately S4.7 million, a capital budget of approximately $2.6 million, and
a debt service budget of approximately S870,000. For 2019, the operations budget increases by
approximately 5.8% over 2018 to accommodate staff salary cost-of-living adjustments and benefit
increases, hiring an additional maintenance worker to overlap with an anticipated retirement in the
Operation Department later in the year, and upgrades to asset management and records
management systems. Debt service expenditures will be reduced by S260,000 from 2018
expenditures with the final Public Works Trust Fund loan payment completed in 2018 that was
associated with the Utility Local Improvement District (LTLID) 18 project. On the other hand, the
District will be completing a much larger capital program than 2018. Much of the increase
(approximately $1.2 million) will in actuality be carryover of projects that did not move through
completion in 2018 due to a variety of reasons (external permitting delays and staffing limitations
created by management vacancies being the primary two reasons). To maintain the District’s multi-
year capital improvement programs of continued investment in our water and sewer system
infrastructure, the Engineering Department xviii aggressively manage our full slate of projects, winch
includes construction associated with renovation or circumvention of three sanitary sewer lift
stations, and design and permitting of the renovation of two additional sanitary sewer lift stations (to
be constructed in 2020) and the Agate Heights water treatment plant upgrades (also to be
constructed in 2020).

The budget has been carefully crafted to emphasize the Board’s service priorities while deploying
resources in a manner that assures a firm foundation. As a result, the 2019 Budget maintains

2019 BUDGET PAGE 1
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT

014



reserves at levels defined by District financial policies, while maintaining adequate operating capital
and investing in critical infrastructure improvements that are aimed at prolonging the Life of our
assets and protecting the environment. The 2019 capital improvement program reflects a pay-as-
you-go approach funded through a combination of one-time and ongoing resources consistent with
the District’s asset management philosophy and the 2016 water and sewer utility rate stud. The fact
that the 2019 investments can be made without reliance on debt is made possible by the ongoing
commitment to disciplined fiscal policy and management.

The 2019 Budget also reaffirms the District’s ongoing commitment to protecting Lake Whatcom. In
2019, the District will continue its partnership with Whatcom County and the City of Bellingham for
water quality monitoring and invasive species inspection programs, and has allocated an additional
S35,000 beyond its partnership commitments to supplement water quality monitoring and
preservation of the lake.

Forecasting resources, preparing the budget, monitoring its implementation, and assuring
accountabthtv and transparency, all while completing day-to-day work functions, takes an
exceptional group of professionals. I want to thank District staff, all of whom had a hand in
development of the 2019 Budget. I also want to thank the Board of Commissioners, whose
leadership and policy direction has placed the District in a position that enables many of the
progressive investments found in this budget. Lastly, I thank the District’s customers that make up
the Lake Whatcom community, without whom we would not have a purpose.

Sincerely,

Justin L. Clary
General Manager

2019 BUDGET PAGE 2
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT



2 SUMMARYOFFUNDS

The Lake Whatcorn Water & Sewer District (District) is a limited purpose local government
authorized under Title 57 Revised Code of \Vashington (Water-Sewer Districts). Originally formed
in 1968 as Whatcom County Water District No. 10, the District’s primary function is to provide
water and sewer service to customers in an 18-square mile area encompassing much of Lake
Whatcom, mcluding Geneva, Sudden \Talley and the North Shore of Lake Whatcom. The District is
governed by a five member Board of Commissioners (Board) who set the policies and rates of the
District, and who adopt an annual operating budget. The annual budget defines the operational and
capital improvement programs for that year, as well as maintenance of contingency and reserve
funds to respond to unanticipated events, should they occur. The following summarizes each of the
District’s funds.

2,1 Operating Fund (Fund 401)

This fund is maintained as the primary operating fund of the District. The ma)orirv of revenue is
derived from rates charged to water and sewer customers. Other revenue sources are interest
income, late payment fees, recording fees, permit fees, payments associated with existing utility local
improvement districts (ULIDs), and miscellaneous charges and fees. All fees and charges are set by
the Board. Funds collected are used to pay for operations and maintenance expenditures in
accordance with the Board-approved annual operating budget.

2.2 System Reinvestment Fund (Fund 420)

This is a special fund intended to receive and disburse funds for capital construction projects. This
fund is primarily funded through interfund income from the Operating Fund. The fund amount is
estabhshed through periodic rate studies. Expenses associated with this fund are developed annually
in a Capital Improvement and Alaintename P/an, which is derived from the capital improvement
programs for the sewer and water utilities.

2.3 Sewer/Stormwater Contingency Fund (Fund 425)

This fund was created to ensure that unanticipated projects related to sewer system and stormwater
system expenses will be funded, subsequent to Board approval. The fund amount is established
through the District’s financial policies at one percent of the sewer utility infrastructure replacement
cost.

2.4 Water Contingency Fund (Fund 426)

This fund was created to ensure that unanticipated projects related to the water system expenses will
be funded, subsequent to Board approval. The fund amount is established through the District’s
financial policies at one percent of the water utility infrastructure replacement cost.

2019 BUDGET PAGE 3
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT

0Th



2.5 Debt Service Fund (Fund 450)

This fund provides redemption of outstanding debt incurred. The 2016 Bond issue interest is paid
semi-annually, and the principal is paid annually from Operating Fund revenues. This fund also
provides redemption of long term water project loans. Principal and interest on those loans are paid
entirely from Operating Fund revenues.

2.6 Bond Reserve Fund (Fund 460)

The fund was established by the covenants of the 2016 bond sale and is restricted by definition. A
reserve limitation is required to be held in this fund until the outstanding 2016 bonds are paid in full.
The bond reserve is fully funded.

2019 BUDGET PAGE 4
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT

017



District functions are funded primarily
through revenues received through
water and sewer service fees, with the
relatively small remainder of revenues
coming from other fees and charges,
and permits and other miscellaneous
revenues.

3 2019 REVENUE PROJECTIONS

In 2016, the District engaged the

________

services of a utility financing consultant
to review the District’s operational and
capital programs relative to revenue 2019 Revenue Sources
projections. The outcome of the study
provided a multi-rear approach to
incremental increases to water and sewer rates through 2021 to ensure sufficient funding for
operations, outstandmg debt service, and system reinvestment through capital projects. Per the
Board-approved multi-year rate schedule, 2019 Budget revenues have been based upon water and
sewer rate increases of 4 and 2.5 percent, respectively, over 2018 rates. This will result in
approxin-iatelv S2.5 and $4.1 million in water and sewer utility revenues, respectively.

The other relatively significant revenue stream is fees the District receives for the connection of new
development to its water and sewer systems. These enera/ jni/iy chaiges have been developed based
upon the new customer’s proportionate share of the cost of constructing the system to which they
are connecting, as vell as the proportionate share for future system expansion to accommodate that
connection’s impact. Development within the District increased significantly during 2018, with 27
permits issued for new homes. As a result, general facility charge revenues increased significantly
over that of prior years. Although current indications are that 2019 will witness similar levels of new
development, the 2019 Budget revenues have been based upon a more conservative number of 15
new homes (resulting in a projection of $210,000 in associated revenue).

Other revenues (totaling approxunatelv $167,000), comprised of latecomer and other miscellaneous
fees, investment interest, and revenues associated with ULID 18, have been based upon 2018
revenues.

Therefore, based upon prior adopted rate increases and conservative projections of other revenues,
the 2019 Budget reflects a total revenue from external sources of $6,965,145, which is an
approximate four percent increase over revenues projected in the 2018 Budget, but roughly
equivalent to actual revenues projected through 2018 yearend.

2019 BUDGET PAGE 5
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT

Perms’0ther —,Fe/charges

‘1\i

_

SewérSe ice

018



4,1 Operating Fund (Fund 401)

4 2019 EXPENDITURES

As previously stated, the Operating Fund is the primary fund through which District business is
conducted. Following provides a summary of the primary expenditures anticipated in 2019.

Personnel. Being a service-oriented organization, staff salary and associated benefits make up a
large portion of the overall Operating Fund budget. In 2019, the District will add one Maintenance
Worker 1 position beyond the 2018-budgeted 18 full-time equivalent positions. The additional
position is consistent with the District’s staff succession plan as it will allow for overlap of an entr
level maintenance worker with that of a Maintenance Worker 2 position that is anticipated to retire
in fall 2019. Beyond the additional position, personnel-related cost increases from the 2018 Budget
are primarily associated with union contract-required cost-of-living adjustments to salaries (estimated
at three percent) and increases to healthcare and related benefits (an increase of four percent). The
2019 Organization Chart is:

2019 BUDGET
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT

PAGE 6

019

Lake Whatcom Water & Sewer District Organizational Chart
Updated i1,132W8

Adnin ranon

Operat ens & M antenance

Engineering



Professional Services. The District relies on a number of professional- and vendor-related services
to efficiently and effectively carry out the business of the District. Such providers include
contracting with the District’s legal counsel and on-call consulting engineer, support services
associated with asset management, infrastructure control, administrative systems, and general
services (e.g., custodial, landscape maintenance, security, etc.). Total professional services for 2019
are projected at $290,000, which is a significant decrease from the 2018 budget, due primarily to
costs associated with a salary study and the bi-annual audit performed by the Washington State
Auditor’s Office not being required in 2019.

City of Bellingham Fees. To protect the quality of Lake Whatcom, all sewage collected by the
District is conveyed to the City of Bellingham’s sanitary sewer system and treated at the City’s Post
Point wastewater treatment plant. As a result, the District pays the City of Bellingham for treatment
of all sewage collected by the District. Similarly, the District does not have a drinking water source
that is connected to the Eagleridge residential neighborhood located on the Lake Whatcom north
shore. Therefore, the District purchases water from the City of Bellingham to serve Eagleridge. The
total projected cost for water and sewer fees from the City of Bellingham for 2019 is budgeted at
$650,000, which is relatively equivalent to costs projected through 2018 vearend.

Water Quality Partnerships. With Lake Whatcom as the primary source of drinking water within
the District, protection of its water quality is crucial. Tn 2019, the District will continue its
partnership with Whatcom County and the City of Bellingham for water quality monitoring and
invasive species inspection programs ($55,000), as well as invest an additional 535,000 in associated
initiatives aimed at protecting water quality within the lake.

Utilities. Electricity to treat and distribute water to District customers, and to pump sewage to the
City of Bellingham makes up a significant portion of the District’s operating budget. Electricity
costs, together with other utilities, are budgeted at $230,000 for 2019, up approximately ten percent
from the 2018 Budget to account for rate increases and growth within the District.

Operating Reserve. An operating reserve is maintained within the Operating Fund to provide a
liquidity cushion; it protects the utilities from the risk of short-term variation in the timing of
revenue collection and the payment of expenses. Like other types of reserves, operating reserves also
serve another purpose in that they help smooth rate increases over time. In accordance with District
financial policies, an operating reserve is maintained equivalent to the cost of operating the sewer
and water utilities for 60 days ($800,000). Also per District policies, in any year where operating
reserves exceed the maximum days of operations expenses at yearend (60 days), that excess cash is
transferred to the System Reinvestment Fund for capital projects. For 2019, $75,000 of excess cash
is projected for reinvestment in District infrastructure.

2018 Fund Carryover. Due to external permitting delays and limited engineering staff availability
resulting from management vacancies that occurred in 2018, $1.2 million in Operating Fund monies
were not transferred to the System Reinvestment Fund because the associated capital projects were
not completed. As a result, these funds will be carried over to 2019 when the associated projects will
be completed.

2019 BUDGET PAGE 7
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT

020



4.2 System Reinvestment Fund (Fund 420)

In 2019, the District will undertake an aggressive program of capital improvement, system
maintenance, and system reinvestment projects. The 2019 Capital Improvement and Maintenance P/au,
included as Appendix B, provides a comprehensive description of the projects that will be
corn leted under this fund.

Category Project Cost1

Capital Improvement Projects

Sewer Country Club Lift Station Design, Permitting & Construction $563,700

Sewer Geneva Lift Station/Force Main Design, Permitting & Construction $660,600

Sewer Euclid Lift Station Design, Permitting & Construction $298,000

Sewer Dellesta and Edgewater Lift Stations Design & Permitting $59,500

Sewer Camp Firwood ATS $2,000

Sewer Airport Lift Station Generator and Lakewood Lift Station Easement $35,000

Sewer Northshore Force Main Stream Crossing Protection $75,000

Water Dead End Blowoffs $8,800

Water Geneva Booster Station Renovation $40,000

Water ShakeAlert Pilot Program $5,000

Water Division 7 Reservoir FEMA Grant Application $5,000

Water Agate Heights Water Treatment Plant and Opal Booster Pump Upgrades $22,000

General Replace Backhoe $105,000

Subtotal $1,879,600

Maintenance Projects

Sewer Flat Car Lift Station Pump Renovation $28,000

Sewer AB PLC-S Replacements, Uninterrupted Power Service Improvements $100,000

General Replace Tires — 5-Yard Dump Truck $3,600

Subtotal $131,600

System Reinvestment Projects

Sewer Edgewater Lift Station Design & Bidding $100,000

Sewer Update Sewer Comprehensive Plan $85,000

Sewer Rehabilitation and Replacement Projects $40,000

Water Water Meters (40) and Replacement Registers (200) $45,000

Water Fire Flow Improvements (2 projects) $17,000

Water Little Strawberry Bridge Water Main Replacement Pre-design $20,000

Water Sudden Valley & Agate Heights Water Treatment Plant Component Replacements $72,000

Water Field Chlorine Injection System $5,000

Water Safety Improvements — Division 7, Division 22, and Geneva Reservoirs $25,000

Water Sudden Valley Water Treatment Plant Facility Improvement Plan $50,000

Water Rehabilitation and Replacement Projects $25,000

General District Office Improvements (Irrigation, Parking/Drainage Improvements, and Front Access $60,000

Subtotal $544,000

TOTAL $2,555,200

Costs presented in table are rounded, please refer to Appendices A and B for specific projected costs.

2019 BUDGET
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT

PAGE 8

021



4.3 Sewer/StormwaterContingencyFund (Fund 425)

The fund amount,as establishedthroughthe District’s financial policies at one percentof the sewer
utility infrastructurereplacementcost, is $785,000.To meetDistrict financial policies, S15,000will
be transferredinto the fund from the OperatingFund; however, as this is contingencyfund, no
expendituresare budgetedfor 2019.

4.4 WaterContingencyFund (Fund426)

The fund amount,as establishedthroughthe District’s financial policies at one percentof the water
utility infrastructurereplacementcost, is S460,000.To meetDistrict financial policies, $20,000will
be transferredinto the fund from the OperatingFund; however,as this is contingencyfund, no
expendituresare budgetedfor 2019.

4.5 DebtServiceFund (Fund450)

This fund accountsfor debt service repaymentassociatedwith prior District capital improvements
and are summarizedin the Reiemie Bonds and Lnan Funds Surnmaiy (Appendix C). Total 2019
expendituresto make principal and interest paymentson District low interest loan and bond
obligationswill be $867,100.Paymentswill be associatedwith:

• GenevaAC Pipe Mains ReplacementProject

• Division 22 WaterReservoirConstructionProject

• 2009 Bond (financed renovation of three sewer lift stations and system-wide telemetry
upgrades)

• 2016 Bond (re-fundedthe 2009 Bond, as well as financedthe renovationof two sewer lift
stations and the District’s portion of upgradesto the City of Bellingham’s Post Point
wastewatertreatmentplant)

Of note, paymentsassociatedwith Debt Loan 064 (associatedwith ULID 18) were completedin
2018, reducing expenditures from this fund relative to 2018 expenditures by approximately
$240,000.

4.6 Bond ReserveFund (Fund460)

No expendituresare anticipatedin 2019 from this fund. A fund balanceof approximately$770,000
vili be carriedover from 2018.

2019 BUDGET PAGE 9
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT

022


